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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

APRIL GILLMORE. individually and on Case No. S... n-C\J- 1- ii alR.P
behalf of all others similarly situated.

CLASS ACTION COMPl.AINT
Plaint ill:

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

LOKEY AUTOMOTIVE GROIJP. INC. d/b/a
LOKEY VOLKSWAGEN.

Delendain.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff April Gillmore brings this Class Action Complaint and Demand for Jury 'Hal

against Defendant Lokev Automotive Group, Inc. d/b/a Lokey Volkswaf2en ("I.okey- or

'Defendant-) to stop its practice of sending unsolicited text messages to cellular telephones

without the recipient's consent and to obtain redress for all persons injured by its conduct.

including injunctive relief. Plaintiff alleges as follows upon personal knowledge as to herself

and her own acts and experiences_ and. as to all other matters_ upon information and belief.

including investigation conducted by her attorneys.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Defendant I.okey is a company in Florida that sells automobiles and automobile

repair services.

2. To promote its business and attract new customers. Lokey sent unsolicited text

message advertisements to consumers in Florida—with whom it had no prior relationship with

whatsoever—encouraging them to schedule an appointment to repair their vehicles at its

dealership.

3. Lokey sent the text message advertisements at issue en masse usiml an automated

telephone dialing system rATDS-) to a list of cell phone numbers it purchased from a third

55's
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party.

4. Plaintiff Gillmore, like the other members of the putative class, never agreed or

consented to receive autodialed promotional text messages from Lokey (or the third party from

which Lokey purchased their cell phone numbers), and has no relationship with either company.

5. Lokey's practice of sending promotional text messages to the cell phones of

Plaintiff and the Class—without their prior express consent—violates the Telephone Consumer

Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. 227 ("TCPA").

6. The TCPA was enacted to protect consumers from unsolicited telephone and text

message calls exactly like the ones alleged in this case. By sending the unsolicited text messages

at issue to the personal cell phones of Plaintiff and the Class, Lokey violated their privacy and

statutory rights, and caused them to suffer actual harm, including the aggravation, nuisance, and

invasions of privacy that necessarily accompanies the receipt of unsolicited text messages.

7. In response to Lokey's unlawful conduct, Plaintiff filed this action seeking an

injunction requiring Lokey to cease all unsolicited text messaging activities, as well as an award

of statutory damages to the members of the Class as provided under the TCPA, together with

costs and reasonable attorneys' fees.

PARTIES

8. Plaintiff Gillmore is a natural person and resident of the State of Florida.

9. Defendant Lokey is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the

State of Florida with its principal place of business located at 27850 US Highway 19 North,

Clearwater, Florida 33761.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. 1331, as the action

arises under the TCPA, which is a federal statute. This Court has personal jurisdiction over
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Defendant because it conducts a significant amount of business in this District, solicits

consumers in this District, sent and continues to send unsolicited text messages in this District,

and because the wrongful conduct giving rise to this case occurred in, was directed to, and/or

emanated from this District.

11. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. 1391(b) because Defendant

conducts a significant amount of business within this District and markets to this District, and

because the wrongful conduct giving rise to this case occurred in and/or was directed to this

District. Venue is additionally proper because both Defendant and Plaintiff reside in this District.

COMMON FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

12. In recent years, some companies have turned to unsolicited text messaging as a

low-cost way to market to new customers.

13. To assist with its text messaging campaign, Defendant hired Recall Masters, Inc.

("Recall Masters") to provide it with the lists of potential customers in the area who have

unperformed automobile recalls from the year 2000 or later. Specifically, Recall Masters

provided Defendant with the names and cell phone numbers ofpotential customers, along with

the make, model, and year of their vehicles.

14. Defendant then uses the cell phone numbers provided by Recall Masters to send

text messages en masse informing the vehicle owners about a supposed recall involving their

particular vehicle and soliciting them to schedule an appointment at the dealership.

15. Defendant intended the text message recipients to respond by scheduling an

appointment at its dealership and paying money for services.

16. Recall Masters claims that it "leverage[s] more than 40 data sources to identify up

to three times more vehicles with open recalls [and] create[s] opportunities [for companies like

Defendant] to increase sales and services revenue..
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17. As illustrated in Figure 1. Recall Masters claims that --[m]ore recalls lequalsl

more customers plus] more profit.

you are a mananer at a Car Dealership:

Well find up to more vehicles with recalls than the factory

b.1 rev!): titlv1,1,

(Figure 1).

Recall Masters goes on to write "comprehensive recall solutions not only establish your dealer as

the community leader in automotive sa retV. but benefit your dealership immensely by connecting

with first time customers, securing additional customer pay RO revenue. increasing vehicle sales.

winning back lost customers and saving/improving CSI scores.-

18. An article recently published online stated that automotive businesses such as

Defendant's benefit from open recalls because they "represent a unique market opportunity to

grow sales and service revenue, drive up each dealership's CSI and restore [their] brand's

integrity in the eyes of the consumer-1

19. A case study done by Recall Masters themselves states that laifter just four

months on the program. Sullivan Toyota la business substantially similar to Defendant] realized

over S384.000 in additional service revenue, consisting of $307.104 warranty revenue and

$77,321 customer pay revenue. And diat's not all it also sold an additional 81 vehicles."

(emphasis added)?

AutoLoop Partners with Recall •lasters to Revolutionize l'ehick Repairs hy Chris Milkr
DrivingSales, hups://www.drivi ngsales.com/chris-miller-35518/blog/autoloop-partners-with-

recall-masters-to-revolutionize-vehicle-repairs (last visited Aug. 21. 2017).
2 Case Study: Sullivan Brothers Recall Masters, http://www.recallmasters.com/case-
study-sullivan-bros/ (last visited Aug. 21. 2017).
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Defendant knowingly sent (and continues to send) unsolicited telemarketing text

messages without the prior express written consent of the recipients. In so doing. Defendant not

only invaded the personal privacy of Plaintiff and members of the putative Class_ but also

intentionally arid repeatedly violated the TCPA.

FACTS SPECIFIC TO PLAINTIFF APRIL GlLLMORE

71. On June 8. 2017 at 1:01 p.m.. Gil lmore received an unsolicited text message on

her cellular telephone from telephone number (727) 998-4222 stating. "Hi April. [y jou have an

unrepaired recall on your 2003 Jetta. This is the Recall Department at Lokey Volkswagen.

Would you like to learn more, schedule an appointment, or be removed from our recall alert

contact listT See Figure 2. The telephone number (727) 998-4222 is owned and/or operated by

Defendant.

Verizon 5.59 PM 61% fem.

O739913.4222

Hi April, You have an unrepaired
recall on your 2003 Jelta. This is the
Recall Department at Lokey
Volkswagen. Would you like to learn

more, schedule an appointment, or

be removed from our recall alert
contact list?

I apologize tor any incorwenience
and will update our records.

(Figure 2).

5
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22. In reality, the recall identified in the text message was issued in 2007 (10 years

ago) and was not covered under the car's warranty. As such, Defendant sent the text message to

Plaintiff with the purpose of soliciting her to schedule an appointment at its dealership and pay

money out of her own pocket to perform repairs to her vehicle.

23. Gillmore has not taken her car to Defendant's dealership in over 10 years. She

does not have a relationship with Defendant, and has never provided her cell phone number to

Defendant or Recall Masters for any reason, let alone for them to market to her using an ATDS.

Simply put, Defendant did not obtain Gillmore's prior express written consent to send text

message advertisements to her and the parties did not have any previous relationship whatsoever.

24. By sending unauthorized text messages as alleged herein, Defendant caused

Plaintiff and the Class to suffer actual harm in the form of annoyance, nuisance, and invasion of

privacy. In addition, the text messages disturbed Plaintiff's and the Class's use and enjoyment of

their cellular telephones, in addition to the wear and tear on the cellular telephone's hardware

(including the cellular telephone's battery) and the consumption of memory on their cellular

telephones.

25. In order to redress these injuries, Gillmore, on behalf of herself and a Class of

similarly situated individuals, brings suit under the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47

U.S.C. 227, et seq., which prohibits unsolicited voice and text calls to cellular telephones.

26. On behalf of the Class, Plaintiff seeks an injunction requiring Defendant to cease

all wireless text-messaging activities and an award of statutory damages to the Class members,

together with costs and reasonable attorneys' fees.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

27. Class Definition: Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure 23(b)(2) and Rule 23(b)(3) on behalf of herself and a class of similarly situated

6
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individuals defined as follows:

All persons in the United States (1) to whom Defendant (or a third person acting
on behalf of Defendant) sent one or more text message advertisements, (2) to his
or her cellular telephone phone, (3) between four years prior to the filing of this
complaint through the present (4) without a record demonstrating prior express
written consent to send such text messages.

The following individuals are excluded from the Class: (1) any Judge or Magistrate presiding

over this action and members of their families; (2) Defendant, its subsidiaries, parents,

successors, predecessors, and any entity in which Defendant or its parents have a controlling

interest and their current or former employees, officers and directors; (3) Plaintiffs attorneys; (4)

persons who properly execute and file a timely request for exclusion from the Class; (5) the legal

representatives, successors or assigns ofany such excluded persons; and (6) persons whose

claims against Defendant has been fully and finally adjudicated and/or released. Plaintiff

anticipates the need to amend the Class definitions following appropriate discovery.

28. Numerosity: The exact sizes of the Class is unknown and not available to

Plaintiff at this time, but it is clear that individual joinder is impracticable. On information and

belief, Defendant sent autodialed text messages to thousands of consumers who fall into the

definition of the Class. Members of the Class can be easily identified through Defendant's or its

agent's records.

29. Commonality and Predominance: There are many questions of law and fact

common to the claims of Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, and those questions

predominate over any questions that may affect individual members of the Class. Common

questions for the Class include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

(a) whether Defendant's conduct constitutes a violation of the TCPA;

(b) whether Defendant utilized an automatic telephone dialing system to send text

messages to members of the Class, as contemplated by the TCPA;

7
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(c) whether Defendant obtained prior express written consent to contact any class
members; and

(d) whether members of the Class are entitled to treble damages based on the
willfulness of Defendant's conduct.

30. Typicality: Plaintiff s claims are typical of the claims of other members of the

Class, in that Plaintiff and the Class members sustained damages arising out of Defendant's

uniform wrongful conduct and unsolicited text message calls.

31. Adequate Representation: Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and

protect the interests of the Class, and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class

actions. Neither Plaintiff nor her counsel has any interests antagonistic to those of the Class, and

Defendant has no defenses unique to Plaintiff Plaintiff and her counsel are committed to

vigorously prosecuting this action on behalf of the members of the Class, and have the financial

resources to do so.

32. Policies Generally Applicable to the Class: This class action is appropriate for

certification because Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the

Class as a whole, thereby requiring the Court's imposition of uniform relief to ensure compatible

standards of conduct toward the members of the Class, and making final class-wide injunctive

relief appropriate. Defendant's business practices apply to and affect the members of the Class

uniformly, and Plaintiff s challenge of those practices hinges on Defendant's conduct with

respect to the Class as a whole, not on facts or law applicable only to Plaintiff.

33. Superiority: This class action is also appropriate for certification because class

proceedings are superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of

this controversy and joinder of all members of the Class is impracticable. The damages suffered

by individual members of the Class will likely be small relative to the burden and expense of

individual prosecution of the complex litigation necessitated by Defendant's wrongful conduct.

8
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Thus, it would be virtually impossible for the members of the Class to obtain effective relief

from Defendant's misconduct on an individual basis. A class action provides the benefits of

single adjudication, economies of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a single court.

Economies of time, effort, and expense will be fostered and uniformity ofdecisions will be

ensured.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act

47 U.S.C. 227
(On Behalf of Plaintiff the Class)

34. Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein.

35. Defendant sent autodialed text messages to cellular telephone numbers belonging

to Plaintiff and other members of the Class without first obtaining their prior express written

consent to receive such autodialed text messages.

36. Defendant sent the text messages using equipment that had the capacity to store or

produce telephone numbers using a random or sequential number generator, to receive and store

lists of phone numbers, and to dial such numbers, en masse, without human intervention. The

telephone dialing equipment utilized by Defendant dialed cell phone numbers from a list, or

dialed numbers from a database of telephone numbers, in an automatic and systematic manner.

Defendant's autodialer disseminated information en masse to Plaintiff and other members of the

putative Class simultaneously and without human intervention.

37. By sending the unsolicited text messages to Plaintiff and other members of the

putative Class without their prior express consent, and by utilizing an automatic telephone

dialing system to make those calls, Defendant violated 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(1)(A)(iii).

38. As a result of Defendant's conduct, Plaintiff and the other members of the

putative Class are each entitled to, under 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(3)(B), a minimum of $500.00 in

damages for each violation of the TCPA.

9
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39. In the event that the Court determines that Defendant's conduct was willful and

knowing, it may, under 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(3)(C), treble the amount of statutory damages

recoverable by Plaintiff and the other members of the putative Class.

40. Additionally, as a result of Defendant's unlawful conduct, Plaintiff and the other

members of the putative Class are entitled to an injunction under 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(3)(A) to

ensure that Defendant's violations of the TCPA do not continue into the future.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff April Gillmore, individually and on behalf of the Class, prays

for the following relief:

I. An order certifying the Class as defined above, appointing Plaintiff Gillmore as

the representatives of the Class, and appointing her counsel as Class Counsel;

2. An award of actual, statutory, and treble damages;

An order declaring that Defendant's actions, as set out above, violate the TCPA;

4. An order declaring that Defendant's telephone calling equipment constitutes an

automatic telephone dialing system under the TCPA;

5. An order requiring Defendant to disgorge any ill-gotten funds acquired as a result

of its unlawful telephone calling practices;

6. An order requiring Defendant to identify any third-party involved in the

autodialed calling as set out above, as well as the terms of any contract or compensation

arrangement it has with such third parties;

7. An injunction requiring Defendant to cease all unsolicited text-messaging

activities, and enjoining the Defendant from using, or contracting the use of, an automated or

computerized dialing system to place text message calls without consent;

8. An award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs to be paid out of the common

10
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fund; and

9. Such other and further relief that the Court deems reasonable and just.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff requests a trial by jury ofall claims that can be so tried.

Respectfully Submitted,

APRIL GILLMORE, individually and on behalf
of a Class of similarly situated individuals

Dated: August 23, 2017 By:
one of Plainti Attorneys

Benjamin H. Richman*
brichman@edelson.com
Ari J. Scharg*
ascharg@edelson.com
EDELSON PC
350 N. LaSalle, 13th Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60654
Tel: 312.589.6370

Stefan Coleman (Florida Bar No. 0030188)
law@stefancoleman.com
LAW OFFICES OF STEFAN COLEMAN, P.A.
201 S. Biscayne Blvd., 28th floor
Miami, Florida 33131
Tel: 877.333.9427
Fax: 888.498.8946

Attorneysfor Plaintiffand the Class
*Pro Hac Vice admission to be sought



N I AC1 NA

Case 8:17-cv-02064-EAK-MAP Document 1-1 Filed 08/29/17 Page 1 of 1 PagelD 12

JS 44 (REA. I I 151 CIVIL COVER SHEET

-Fhe JS 44 ciii oc cc Mieei and the inlormaiitml cum:lined liciein neither ieplace nor supplemeel the filing and service ol pleadinzs or other even ai rcriredle. Ian. ocepi as

provided 1.n local rulc7, of court This lone. approved lr Ice Judicial Conk mice ol the I !need Staces iir September 1174, is required For ills 11W Or thr: Clerk of.Coun for the

purpose olinitiatinu Mc civil doaet sheet. rSEI INS/ Ur( 'YU e1N NFDT..14;1. U. HIM/ JIM

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFLNDANTh

APRIL GILLMORE. individually and on behalf of all other similarly LOKEY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC, d/b/a LOKEY VOLKSWAGEN
situated

(I)) Courm of Residence oi 1:11s1 1 SIc1 I Liii LII Hillsborough Counly COLI1117, oi Rrsidrure ol I Irst Listcd 1M-umlaut Pinellas County
11, 111/115 i'(1)Vi Ili ;(1 10 IIN 'S IL\711 CASES ONLY)

1ti LIND CONI/EVIN.‘ 11115.ASES. USE THE. I OCAT 10S: OF
I El I l{ \yr (11 1 AND IWO{ VFD

(C) AIR1fIlqS rt rem .VrI,?..L....3, 1, irc“. aq3 L. Il S rto

EDELSON PC, 350 North LaSalle, 13lh Floor, Chicago, Illinois
60654, 312-589-6378

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION hik.!5•J1 11;II III. CITIZENSHIP OF PARTIES,pi.,,,,

hs• IL.1 I kicmiam)
Gosrmorni Frdrral Qi0.1.con PIT OFT PTF DLF

Plaintiff Cuireu Ilus Stair X I g 1 lororporalccl ta• Principal Ping n CI 4
of Business in This Slate

S (imam-new 1 .1 DiArrso^ I. 'twit of Another Stair rl 2 n 2 Incorporated in/ Pnricipa1Ptae rl 5 n 5

Ikfendam of Business hi Another Stale

(.1BIZI1 Iff SubjC0 nit fl 21. locrivn \noon ri 6 71
06r6211 C.16111

IV. NATURE OF ^11511

71 III) Insuran....r I'FitS05: t.l. !Nil RV Pt liS1IN.s.1 3,01 in -1 r, 25 !h.q. Relrue^iSeiziur 71 122 .5ppcal 2:5 I .51 1”: 71 75 ratie Clrurns tel

n 120 \12.111,: 1 10 trplan:: I 1i.s hus.u1.11 hum:. of lR.p01.!.. 21 1 or ti1, -.1 7 .121 l'.111111r.mui 1 st,,,.(;1,..11 -1131. I i r...51.
1 I 31.1 Minn :Sec 71 315 Airplaur Produ, i hoduct 1 labilue 1 l 11 It;I,!gl..M. 15- "..729ia It
1 140 Negotiable lastruoteni Liahilio, r1 3o7 Fieldth care. 1 .1, State R eapporti Daniell!

71 150 Re:Amer) of Cherpa^•ineni ri:, :.!0.34saull. Libel ctz l'hafinnr: c MICa l PROPERTY FILIiITTS 1 .11,P •mitrust
Ar. Enforcrucent of 1u4ruclo Shuck; Pawns.' linig, n 11211Cor.tights 71 1-1,I. Banks and Banking

O 151 Sicdi.zarc Act 1 1 r:di rcderal Froplo!.o.s. Prodijet l.ial.ilth n .Clii i'.:11.:11.1 1 15^P Corurnrror
0 152 Recoserv of DEfaultrd Linbilify n %co.c ...0.t,los poscri.li n KIII i radcurail. 7 i6.P Depottalion

SrudcM Loans n .1.10 Marine linen; Pio:ilk:I n 47 J Racketeer Influencedand
{Excludes Veterans) 1 .115 Marinr Produa 1.iahihr, IAROR SOCIAL SECURITY Corrupt Ort.ranizations

7 153 Recut ers of ()terra:, molt Liability PLRSONA1. PROPUR 1.5. ri 710 I iiir I die‘r titarathic 1 :40..1 111.1 11:t0511-1 CI 480.Consurner Crcdic
of Veit:MI..] LICIlefic, 71 7450 1.166ln V.:10Jc M 370 1 Piller Fraud lii 1 14,2 libel. Lune.1 q.111 0 493 cahk:Sai TV

21 160 scchrulutders' salts 1 355 \liTh.11f VellICIC rl 371 1 mill in 1 roam:: .7 710 Libor Nhol.r.-.siurili. M 1563 I 1155 C-DIWW hiISti ii r) 1153 Securities-Commodities:
n 190 Other Concrael Product I. ialichi5. n 311110iller l'cistmal Rclairoot 1 116-I SSII)I111c 5.11 1..., ..chankie
rl 195 Contrari PIoJuu Lial, iIip, :1 :%.01.10115..1 Per, nal Propert) I kuna., il 7.111Raikay Laboi .Nit 1 H65 RSI (405{0) X 1151 Other Statute", Actions
71 1.90 Franchise tn;^11) 71 30 Proprtfs Dinewe 1 7, 1 Family and SledIcAl CI .2011 AyncLilitgai Aell

1,01' 1.0,1IL.LI 11:1115 Prollail I 1^161.146. I Cale ACI 0 H93 Ent itenrnencal Matters.
1, LlIe:31 1..:11111..;WIN:12 n 7.:ku nther 1 abLii 1.14a1con 11 511-.", Freedom of Information

I REAL. PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRIAONF,R PETITIONS 11 7.,11 1 iriel,10:e Itclireincie, FEDERALTAX SUITS Ad'

1 2111 Land Condemnation 0 440 Othil Cis il It.112Ns llalleas i '11rpus; Ili:1116c Sc6 Ill ii:s AO ri H70 "[atollS Plainkff CI 5115 Arhilration
1 2211 Foreelosure n 141 Vonnv n .1, ;.Nkia I 'kcal nci. or Dekndani i. I sLo Admuustraiisr Proccdsne

11 2:10 Rent Lease h: Ejecunecn n 442 rntplestu.., ni 11 5 I il Mlliti,16; 61 5TZ:162 n 117I IRS Iluid Party Act:Review or Appeal of
0 240 Toils to Land CI 443 I fottilrlir.: SOLICII.Cd 2t, 1.•5;(1 715011 Ar dm). Dint5lOrl
Ei 245 Tort Product Liabilic) Acconitnedallons rl 510tieneral. n r155 Couslitutionlit) or
n 2151 All 0.1114:r Neal 1.61[1,16.• 71 445 Amer sP...Disahitific, n 535 Death l'emilr.... IMMMRATION tihin. Sialuics

F.treilqinCill miler: CI ic%:. 5..our.311.rul111n Applicahou
11 446 Amer n:Disabilme, n tin Slairri.imus N:111111.1 7 .14, 5 Ciller 111.1.11111.1:116.113

()flirt CD 5511 CivIl ROT, ..151n111

r) .1-11i hhhlatLon 0 555 l'il6111 Ould1.11011
M SW (.6 11 Ddairiee

Conditions. of
I 'rlirtiiri2rilerll

V. ORIGIN (/'/Lav an -.1 en r)1o.. P. UNA 1

X 1 (....lri.einal n 2 Tiemosed rront rl 3 Remanded hour 11 -1 RcinMated ot rf c I r.1.11:40110(i IDD111 n 1, Windom:it
Procci:di rig Stalt: Cour!! AppclIale COW! RCopened Another Disinci Litigation

(r.f., rI,

Ciiv U11):: I. I 4-;,t 'I vil tilutute villa What'll vim are lilinp fAl not chfiveiulictheralA ill/itlseunfess diveriffp
47

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION Bric:f tlesynption of yaw,:

VII. REQUESTED IN rn L'IlLCK ILI HIS IS A CLASS ACTION DESIAND S Ci IIVK yl:s only if derrunded in complaint•
CONIPLAINT: tiNDLK 1611.L: 23. 1, R C%. i. $5,000, 000 .111-R5 I/ F.11:1 NIL' X YeS 1-1 Nsi

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY I. JIIIIrwill.lor

JI7.1)1.d.: Ix )(Am NUMIIIFR

DA:11_ 11(iNArl' rh1 .1 .1( NI. V C 11. RI 111111)

8/23/2017.
FOR OF LILT. CSL..07,a.V

R1..11:11'1, 15101 .5.1 Al'I'l Y1titi 11 11 11. 'I K il 1151 JI. nrii:



ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Lokey Automotive Group Facing Legal Action Over Unsolicited Texts

https://www.classaction.org/news/lokey-automotive-group-facing-legal-action-over-unsolicited-texts

